
 
 
 

 
 
 

      
   5 February 2018 

 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 13 February 2018 

beginning at 
10:30 am 

at 
The Lowford Centre, Portsmouth Road, Bursledon, Southampton SO31 8ES 

 
TO: Councillors Irish, Bicknell, M Sollitt 
 County Councillors Clarke, Grajewski and Thornton 
 Guy Riddoch, Local Area Manager 
 Cerian Gale and Chris Jones, Hampshire Cultural Trust 
 Jean Roberts-Jones, One Community 

  
  

Staff Contact: Amy Stephens, Case Management Officer  
Tel: 023 8068 8273; Email: amy.stephens@eastleigh.gov.uk  
 

  

GAETANA WISEMAN 
Performance and Governance Manager 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. Apologies     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 2)  
  
 To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2017. 
  
3. Curator's Report    (Pages 3 - 12) 
 
4. Finance Report    (Pages 13 - 16) 
 
5. Date and Venue of Next Meeting     
 
 

 

Eastleigh House 
 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 14 November 2017  (11:30 am – 12:15 pm) 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Representing Eastleigh Borough Council – Councillors Bicknell , M Solitt. 
and Irish 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors Grajewski and House 
Local Area Manager ( Eastleigh) - Guy Riddoch 
Hampshire Cultural Trust - Cerian Trevan and Chris Jones  
One Community - Jean Roberts-Jones  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rupert Kyrle 
 

13. MINUTES 
 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 2017 were agreed as a correct 

record. 
 
14. CURATOR'S REPORT 
 
 Consideration was given to the report of the Curator of Eastleigh Museum 

which advised that the museum had had an excellent 4 months over the 
summer and into the autumn with a number of exciting events and 
exhibitions which had increased visitor numbers. 
 
The highlight of the summer was the Commemorating Southern Steam 
exhibition that ran from July to September 2017 and was kindly put on by 
the Watercress Line as part of their Heritage Lottery Fund project, 
associated with their restoration of Canadian Pacific in Eastleigh Works. As 
part of this a huge event was organised in the town centre over the weekend 
of the 15/16 July to Celebrate Southern Steam – the key attraction being a 
heritage locomotive in the Precinct. This event saw a massive increase in 
numbers to the museum (and the museum stall) which helped drive up 
numbers over the summer period. 
 
Throughout the summer holidays One Community ran a train themed trail at 
the museum which proved very popular and they also hosted the second 
talk by Dr Becky Peacock (who curated the exhibition) about the CanPac 
Project. 
 
In September 2017 the exhibition changed over to another local story – Los 
Niños – about the Basque children who fled the Spanish Civil War and 
ended up in Eastleigh. During the period of time between the exhibitions, 
One Community ran a very popular craft fair in the exhibition space which 
attracted over 100 people each day. 
 
In addition, One Community had continued to welcome a variety of groups 
and organisations into the museum and run a variety of sessions or drop-

1

Agenda Item 2



 

 

ins. This included, but by no means was restricted to, regular visits from the 
Good Neighbours group, two care home visits for tea and cake, the monthly 
Cops and Coffee sessions, and continued to act as a Hate Crime Reporting 
Centre. 
 
One Community also attended another external event this period – 
Eastleigh Mela which continued to be a success for the museum with over 
500 visitors coming to the stall at the event. The museum was now looking 
forward to the festive period and would be putting on their first ever 
Community Christmas tree exhibition where different charities or 
organisations decorated a tree in a creative way. These would be displayed 
at the museum to celebrate and promote the work they do. This would all be 
kicked off by the annual Santa’s Grotto as part of the Eastleigh light switch 
on event on 18 November 2017. 

 
15. FINANCE REPORT 
 
 Consideration was given to the Financial Report and Revenue Budget 

2017/18. Mrs Jean Roberts-Jones, Chair of One Community, noted that in 
the Appendix 1 of the Finance Report, the “Less Income” figures were 
incorrect. Chris Jones, Hampshire Cultural Trust, advised that he would look 
into the figures and provide an update. 
 
Guy Riddoch – Local Area Manager for Eastleigh advised Committee 
Members that Free WiFi would be introduced in Eastleigh Town Centre, 
which in turn could help with the marketing of Eastleigh Museum. 
Committee Members also discussed the celebrations of the Centenary of 
the end of WW1 which the museum should be involved in. 
 
ACTION: Chris Jones to provide correct figures in the Appendix 1 of 
the Finance Meeting prior to the next meeting. 
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 

 
16. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 It was confirmed that the next meeting would be held on 13 February 2018 

at 10.30am with the venue to be confirmed at a later date. 

2



1 
 

  
 AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 

  

Committee: EASTLEIGH MUSEUM 
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 13th Feb 

Title of Report: CURATOR’S REPORT 

Author: Cerian Gale 

  
Purpose: 
  
 
  
 
1.  Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Museum 
 

1.1 Museum Service Delivery 
 

Following on from a very successful summer the autumn/winter period has performed 

equally well with numbers again up on last year and budget every month.  

The highlight of this period has been the Christmas Tree exhibition and associated 

activities including the Santa’s grotto, Family Trail and mug painting activities. All these 

events and the exhibition have really helped contribute to the excellent visitor numbers the 

museum has recorded.  

There has been a varied and interesting range of displays this period, starting with Los 

Niños, then the Christmas trees and finishing with Parish by Parish which have hopefully 

attracted a range of visitors to the museum. 

Looking forwards we continue to have a diverse programme of exhibitions planned which 

will be supplemented with events and activities. In March the Conservation Volunteers will 

be celebrating their pond project with an exhibition looking at the Ponds of Hampshire, 

then in April the Fair Oak art group will be displaying their work and from May to July the 

Odissi Mela will be exhibiting about their latest project.   

In addition One Community have continued to welcome a variety of groups and 

organisations into the museum and run a variety of sessions or drop-ins. This includes, but 

by no means is restricted to, regular visits from the Good Neighbours group and the 

monthly Cops and Coffee sessions as well as continuing to act as a Hate Crime Reporting 

Centre. 

One Community also organised a Community Showcase event in The Point that saw 

charity and community organisations from the area attend to ‘showcase’ their work and 

promote opportunities they might be offering. Both Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon 

Windmill, along with many other groups had stands at the event. 

 

Report on activities at or relating to Eastleigh Museum 
Covering period Nov 17 to Jan 18 

3

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 

1.2 Visitor Figures 
 

Eastleigh was over budget in November by 29% which is an excellent performance. This 
was in part due to the Santa’s grotto event which attracted over 300 more adults this year 
than last (similar numbers of children attended though), but it was also due to better 
numbers on a daily/weekly basis too driven by an interesting local exhibition and the work 
of One Community. 
 
In December Eastleigh had a very good month with visitors 32% up on budget. The 
exhibition has been a display of charity/voluntary organisations Christmas trees which has 
proved extremely popular and received some excellent feedback. By having over 20 trees 
from different organisations involved it has given us a wide audience of people who have 
come in to see them on display. This is something we are now considering repeating next 
year, as both visitors and people who have included trees are already asking about it. 
 
 

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals 

 
2009 – 
2010  

2179 1864 1521 2574 2693 2046 2401 1714 1300 3087 3598 3236 28,213 

 
2010 – 
2011 

2372 1567 1780 2493 3205 2091 2349 1881 1151 1236 2109 1759 24,041 

 
2011 – 
2012 

1713 1408 1516 2022 2322 1805 1542 1351 1297 1140 1550 1321 18,987 

 
2012 – 
2013 

923 163 1153 1131 1640 1213 1153 2018 962 1094 1576 
 

1236 
 

14,252 

 
2013 – 
2014 

1470 1523 1279 1405 2461 1571 1910 1788 1139 1538 1692 1738 19,514 

2014 – 
2015  

1926 3052 1561 1961 1465 1501 1470 1382 850 905 1188 1078 18,339 

2015-
2016 

1655 1435 1431 1674 1434 1248 1746 1876 1310 1032 1208 1122 17,171 

2016-
2017 

1367 1236 1807 1331 1520 1232 1241 1641 966 796 1295 1097 16,006 

2017-
2018 

1204 1490 1265 3094 1551 1508 1399 2151 1303 ??    

 
 
2.  Hosting Special Temporary Exhibitions and Related Events 
 
2.1 Los Niños exhibition (20th Sept – 18th Nov) 
 
Our first exhibition of this period was the Los Niños exhibition kindly loaned by 
Southampton University. This HLF funded exhibition aimed to record and preserve the 
memories of the Niños who fled the Spanish Civil War in 1937 and found themselves 
transported to Eastleigh from Bilbao. This event is really brought to life in the exhibition by 
these personal recollections of their experiences, many of them particularly recalling their 
time spent in Eastleigh.  
 

4



3 
 

 
Figure 1: Poster for Los Ninos exhibtion 

 
 

 
2.2 Santa’s Grotto (18th Nov) 
 
As per previous years One Community hosted the Santa’s Grotto in the Museum again as 
part of the Eastleigh Light Switch On event, and had an Eastleigh Museum gazebo outside 
the museum on the High Street. This event attracted even more people this year with the 
increased focused on adults rather than children- we had 884 people in the museum that 
day, and 257 on the stall. The grotto also attracted an extra special couple of visitors who 
popped in after saying their vows to get a quick few photos with Santa as part of their 
wedding day!  
 

5



4 
 

 
Figure 2: The happy couple with Santa 

 

 
Figure 3: One Community stall on High Street 

6



5 
 

 
2.3 Community Christmas Trees (25th Nov – 6th Jan) 
 
For the first time this year Eastleigh Museum hosted a Community Christmas Tree display 
where local charities and community organisations were able to design and display a 
Christmas tree that represented and promoted their work - 23 took up the challenge to 
provide a tree which would express what they do in the community. The trees were in turn 
beautiful, funny and touching – including a Basics Bank tree made from old food cans, an 
Eastleigh Library tree made from books and a 6-foot knitted tree from the WI. We 
produced a brochure to accompany the exhibition, with information about each of the 
participants. Both contributors and visitors were very positive about the exhibition. Visitors 
left some lovely feedback in the comments book and lots of the groups asked about 
whether it would go ahead next year. 
 
‘Such a lovely idea. Wonderful selection of trees and the comments show the huge 
importance of all the organisations’ 
 
‘So many lovely ideas! A joyful exhibition’   
 

 
Figure 4: Library's Christmas tree 

 
 

7



6 
 

 
Figure 5: Messages on One Community's tree 

 

 
Figure 6: WI tree (entirely knitted!) 

 

8



7 
 

 
Figure 7: Asian Welfare and Cultural Association and Boyatt Wood Partnership trees 

 
 
 
2.4 Christmas Activities (1st – 23rd Dec) 
 
The museum ran two activities in the build up to Christmas and to compliment the 
Christmas Tree exhibition – a Christmas themed trail and mug painting. The trail helped 
boost numbers to the exhibition and the mug painting was popular with over 60 people 
visiting the museum that day.   

 
Figure 8: Mug Painting poster 

9



8 
 

 
2.5 Borough of Eastleigh Parish by Parish (13th Jan – 24th Feb) 
 
For January and February the museum is displaying banner covering all the parishes in 
the Borough of Eastleigh. The banners were created for the 2016/17 Mayoral Ball which 
coincided with the 80th anniversary of the creation of the Borough of Eastleigh to celebrate 
the rich and varied history of the towns and villages that make up the borough as a whole.  
 

 
Figure 9: Two of the parish banners on display 

 
 
3. Caring for collections, promoting access, providing specialist knowledge & 

advice   
  

3.1 Caring for collections 

The Trust’s Conservation Technician visited Eastleigh museum to download the 
environmental monitors - ‘Tinytags’, and with the Principal Conservator responded to 
enquiries about acceptable temperatures in the café area regarding the safety of objects 
on open display.  He also repaired some of the lights in the display cabinets and cleaned 
the stained glass window display, and provided additional folders for the storage of West 
End History Society newsletters. 
 
The Arts Council England have contacted us with regards the Accreditation applications 
for 14 of our venues, including Bursledon, submitted in August, the review process is 
progressing well and we are now at the stage of answering the queries they have relating 

10



9 
 

to our applications. Once this is complete we anticipate that Accreditation for all venues 
will be granted again. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
4.  Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement  

 
4.1  Formal Education Provision 
 
119 pupils took part in museum led workshop programmes in November, visiting from 
Shakespeare Infant School and St Swithun Wells Catholic Primary School.  The outreach 
session was dinosaur themed for three classes using fossil specimens on loan from 
SEARCH in Gosport. The children took part in hands-on activities to investigate fossils and 
what they tell us about the past including the time of the dinosaurs. 
 

 
4.2  Better Life Chances 
 
As part of Horizon 20:20 arts intervention programme 20 students aged 11-16 at the 
Bridge Education Centre experienced 6 glass and 2 papier mache workshops with 
professional artists between November and January. There were 149 learning hours in 
total, with one student saying, ‘After the glass workshop I was left wanting to do more’.  
 
The ICE Project – arts for positive mental health - Simon Says charity in Eastleigh, that 
supports bereaved young people is working with Strong Island Media to make a film about 
grief.  Around 10 vulnerable young people aged 11 – 18 who have experienced the trauma 
of losing a close family member are taking part.  This project will run for a further 2 years.  
 
Wessex Dance Academy takes Hampshire’s highest tariff young people on 12 week, 
contemporary dance cohorts.  The young people come from secured units, education 
centres or are not at school.  Many are young offenders and a number are children in 
care.  The Academy has a strong history of helping young people to turn their lives around 
through discipline, improved re-fueling habits and physical activity.  Jack (not his real 
name) from Eastleigh has attended the Academy recently and has now gone on to study 
at Chichester College. 
 
 
5.  Marketing and Management 
 
5.1 Print material 
 
A new edition of What’s On covering the period Sept – December and featuring Eastleigh 
Museum (Craft Fair, Los Ninos, Half Term Halloween trail and mug painting, Community 
Christmas Trees and Santa’s Grotto) was delivered at the end of August. 12,500 copies 
were printed and circulated via our distributors, Culture Calling, to TICs, libraries, 
museums, accommodation providers, educational establishments, attractions, arts 
centres, theatres etc.  
 

11



10 
 

 
5.2 Online marketing 
 
The e-newsletter Museums Monthly, featuring exhibitions and events from Eastleigh, has 
been sent to sign ups on a new database. Subscribers now number over 5800. We have 
promoted features such as the Craft Fair (September) and Santa’s Grotto (November) in 
the newsletter and on the website.  
 
 
 
5.3 Research 
 
Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at Eastleigh on an ongoing basis. 
These are profiled annually using Mosaic software and provide ongoing information on 
which groups of people are using and not using our services and how individual visitor 
profiles compare to the local area.  This feeds into the service and marketing planning 
processes.  
 
Eastleigh has also started doing visitor surveys from September. This year-long, company-
wide initiative will give us quantitative and qualitative data regarding our venues’ visitors, 
where they come from, why they come, etc. This vital data can then be used to feed back 
into our marketing and exhibitions, and also when applying for funding bids, etc. 
  
5.4 Social Media 
 
HCT Facebook now has over 3350 “likes” and Twitter over 5150 followers. Events at 
Eastleigh are promoted on both social media sites on an ongoing basis.  Those we have 
promoted during the period include the half term trail, mug painting, Santa’s Grotto and 
Community Christmas Trees both on Social Media and the website.  
 
5.5 Digital 
 
Hampshire Cultural Trust is now concentrating on the delivery a wider digital strategy and 
as such has employed a Digital Transformation Manager who is spearheading digital 
modernisation across all venues. Website user experience, online ticketing, especially in 
museums, and CRM, are immediate areas of focus. All of which will create a better user 
experience for visitors to Eastleigh Museum both on and offline. A new online volunteer 
form has already been delivered (Typeform) and work on the new website is underway for 
delivery April 2018.  

 
5.6 Upcoming Projects 
 
Significantly, we will begin working on a bespoke venue leaflet for Eastleigh Museum 
which will contain all the key details about the venue and can be used to promote it 
throughout the year. A new Eastleigh Museum logo will be created. These individual venue 
leaflets will replace the current quarterly What’s Ons which only feature events listings and 
don’t contain full venue information. We are also working on the Family What’s On for 
Winter (Feb half term) featuring activities from Eastleigh including Winter make-and-takes 
and half term trail.  
 
 

Cerian Gale 
Jan 2018 

12



EASTLIEGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  

13 February 2018 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REVENUE BUDGET 2017/18 

Introduction 

In accordance with the agreement between Hampshire County Council, Eastleigh Borough 

Council, the net cost of running Eastleigh Museum is shared between the partner authorities.   

This report provides an over view of the museum’s performance to the end of September 

2017 and an update against the 2017 – 18 budget. 

Description of 2017/18 Budget 

The 2017/18 budget for Eastleigh Museum provided in Appendix 1 reflects proposed partner 

contributions as follows:  

1. Venue Management - salaries 
Includes venue management and curator salaries and on costs. 

2. Venue Management - costs 
This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and 

maintenance cost based on the average costs during 13/14, 14/15 and 15/16.  Due to 

annual fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of 

maintenance will be higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the 

burden will be lighter.  Hampshire County Council will continue to pick up any such 

overspend in years where more work needs to be done. 

3. Public Programmes (exhibitions) 
This charge contributes towards the cost of the Exhibitions team and includes display 

development, transport, setting up and taking down, cases for local exhibitions, 

insurance, marketing and research relating to new exhibitions. 

4. Collections  
This charge contributes to the care, curatorship and management of all collections 

relating to the Red House, organised within the disciplines of Archaeology, The Arts, 

Natural Sciences and Social & Industrial History. The Service will continue to store, 

manage and provide public access to these important collections and make them 

available to the local community in support of exhibitions, displays and activities. 

5. Better Life Chances 
The Better Life Chances team is responsible for the design, creation, marketing and 

delivery of participatory learning sessions for young people in school and family groups, 

as well as other collections learning activity in both informal and formal settings, both 

within the museum and beyond in to the community.  The team will place greater 

emphasis on work with hard to reach people in the specialism of Older People, Young 

People, Schools and Community. 

 

13

Agenda Item 4



6. Business Development 
Business development and marketing functions form the bulk of this cost. Marketing 

functions include visitor research, targeted marketing campaigns, museum and What’s 

On leaflets, posters, website development, email marketing, advertising and media 

relations leading to free editorial and promotions. Business development provides 

strategic guidance and direction, monitors performance, levers funding from external 

sources including Renaissance and Arts Council, and liaises closely with senior 

councillors and officers where appropriate. 

 
These budget headings reflect the headings in the draft Venue Plans, making it easier to 
understand where money is being spent and how Eastleigh Museum directly benefits. The 
budgets have been modelled to include staff increments and a 1% pay award. They also 
include financial activity within the trading arm and projected income from gift aid (where 
applicable).  
 
 
Recommendations 

  It is recommended that the committee 

1) Notes the 2017/18 budget report. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14



Appendix 1 

Eastleigh Museum Joint Management Committee Budget 2017/18 

Expenditure 2017 FY 
Actuals 

Budget 
2016/17 

Actuals 
YTD 
December 
figures 

Budget 
2017/18 

Venue Management -Salaries  10,269   9,759    5,482   5,600  

Venue Management -Costs  12,455   18,061    8,518   15,000  

Public Programmes  18,629   18,433    9,121   20,000  

Collections  43,037   45,421   33,629   45,000  

Better Life Chances  24,835   24,431   14,147   22,000  

Business Development  22,028   22,577   21,813   31,077  

Total Expenditure*  131,253   138,682   92,710   138,677  

Less Income  627   5,919     6,000  

Net Expenditure  130,626  132,763   89,755   132,677  

 

Income Budget 
2016/17 

Budget 
2017/18 

Hampshire Cultural Trust/HCC  167,169   167,705  

EBC Eastleigh Museum  30,000   30,000  

EBC Windmill  23,707   23,707  

BPC Windmill  2,672   2,672  

Total Income  223,548   224,084  

 

 

*This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and 

maintenance costs based on the average actual costs during 12/13, 13/14 and 14/15 (due to annual 

fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance will be 

higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  HCT/HCC will 

continue to pick up any overspend in years when the work needs to be done. 

 

 

15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Curator's Report
	4 Finance Report

